SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 25, 2015
1:38 p. m

1: 38: 07 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 1:38 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co- Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Jerry Burnett, Deputy Conm ssioner, Treasury Division,
Depart ment of Revenue; Representative Cathy G essel;
Senator Gary Stevens; Pat Pitney, Drector, Ofice of
Managenent and Budget, O fice of the Governor.

SUMVARY
PRESENTATION:  ALASKA'S FISCAL CRISIS - DEPARTMENT OF
REVENUE - FI SCAL REPORT

Co- Chair MacKi nnon discussed the agenda for the day and
went over the handouts. She remarked that the state was
facing a $3.9 billion deficit for FY 15 which signified a
draw on reserves. She furthered that there was a
prospective $3.5 billion to $4 billion deficit for FY 16,
contingent upon oil production and price. She reported that
the Senate had cut $374,971,000 from the operating budget.
Based on the previous year, and considering the $3 billion
Teacher's Retirenment System and Public Enpl oyees Retirenent
System ( TRS/ PERS) i nvest nent the nunber could Dbe



calculated with an additional $500 mllion. She added that
$487 million of capital expenditures had been reduced from
the previous year. She indicated that the Senate was doing
everything it could to set the state's operating budget to
the right size while investing in itens that benefitted
Al askans.

APRESENTATI ON:  ALASKA'S FISCAL CRISIS - DEPARTMENT OF
REVENUE FI SCAL REPORT

1:41: 04 PM

JERRY BURNETT, DEPUTY COWM SSIONER, TREASURY DI VI SI ON,
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE (DOR), introduced the Power Point
presentation "Departnent of Revenue - Fiscal Report" (copy
on file), stating that the presentation would |ook at
expectations from the FY 15 revenue forecast while
exam ning projected deficits for subsequent years.

M. Burnett began wth slide 2: "Departnment O Revenue
Fi scal Summary":

*Spring 2015 Revenue Forecast

* Reserve Qutl ook

*Cash Flow & Burn Rate

*Di vision of Finance -Managenent of Cash
*Reserves as of March 31, 2015

* O her Fund Bal ances

M. Burnett stated that sone of the nunbers presented would
be different than what the commttee had, as the departnent
was unaware of the final budget nunbers for the year. He
clarified that the forecast nunbers were for the future. He
intended to discuss cash flow, imrediate reserves, and sone
ot her fund bal ances.

1: 42: 31 PM

M. Burnett turned to slide 3: "Spring 2015 Revenue
Forecast FY 15-FY 24," sourced fromthe DOR Revenue Sources
Book Spring 2015. He shared that the expenditures were from
an internal fiscal nodel, and were reflective of a budget
estimte based on a budget presented by the governor. He
drew attention to the deficit of $3.932 billion
unrestricted general fund (UGF) revenues from 2015, and
conpared it to the $1.9 billion deficit for FY 14. He
remarked on the significant change in expected revenues,

Senat e Fi nance Committee 2 04/ 25/15 1:38 P. M



based on previous forecasts using oil priced at $100-plus
per barrel (bbl). He noted that year to date, actual Al aska
North Slope West Coast (ANS WC) oil prices were above the
$67.49 bbl indicated on the slide, but the revenues woul d
be close to what was reflected on the slide for 2015.

1: 44: 39 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked about the $67.49 ANS WC oil price
for 2015, and wondered if M. Burnett could share an
updated figure. M. Burnett responded that the ANS WC price
was over $70 bbl as of the current week. He discussed
changing prices and explained that there would be a high-
| agged average price until the end of the fiscal year.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked about the average daily price of
$70 for three-quarters of the year, and wanted to assess
the certainty of the $67 figure considering the drag. M.
Burnett stated he thought it would be close to $67.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked to what degree of certainty M.
Burnett believed the ANS WC price of $67 bbl would be set.
M. Burnett believed with a fairly high degree of certainty
that the price would be $67 or higher for the FY 15
average. He did not think it likely to be lower due to
al nrost 10 nonths of prices that were rmuch higher.

Co- Chair MacKinnon asked if the price fluctuated from the
second quarter to the third quarter, or if M. Burnett
could speak to the degree of change between quarters. M.
Burnett reported the ANS WC price in nmuch of the first
quarter was nuch higher (alnmpst $111 bbl) and then it had
dropped dramatically to prices in the $50 bbl range. The
price had nmoved up to the $60 bbl range currently, but was
very volatile in a narrow range.

Co- Chair MacKinnon asked if M. Burnett could supply the
commttee with accurate second quarter data. M. Burnett
stated that he would get the figures to the commttee.

1: 48: 12 PM

M. Burnett discussed the 2016 forecasted ANS WC oil price
of $66.03, looking at other markets in conparison. He
coomented that there was a lot of volatility and prices
changed very rapidly. The state had two years (2013 and

Senat e Fi nance Committee 3 04/ 25/15 1:38 P. M



2014) of the exact sanme average price, with every other
year seeing significant changes up and down.

Vice-Chair Mcciche thought it would have been helpful to
observe unrestricted revenues for one of the years

repr esent ed. He discussed oil t axes, royal ties, and
corporate taxes; and wondered if they would remain fairly
consistent in a set price range until ANS WC cane up to

about $80 bbl. He wondered if M. Burnett had a breakdown
for FY 15.

M. Burnett referred to the FY 15 spring forecast, and
reported that the petroleum property tax was stable at
about $128 million. He furthered that the petroleum
corporate income tax was about $204 nmillion, oil and gas
production tax was at $362 nillion, and royalties were at
$947 mllion. The royalties for FY 16 went up to $1.22
billion, the production tax was |lower at $320 mllion, and
the corporate incone tax was |lower at $148 mllion. He
added that the petroleum property tax for FY 16 was stable
at $125 mllion.

Vice-Chair Mcciche asked if the vast mjority of the
incone was still fromoil. M. Burnett clarified that the
bi ggest part of the revenues for 2015 and 2016 was
royalties, at nearly half of the total of UGF revenues.

Vice-Chair Mcciche asked if there was a net-to-the-good on
production taxes for FY 15 and FY 16. M. Burnett stated
that the state had a net-to-the-good on production taxes
every year in the forecast.

1:51: 28 PM

Co-Chair  MacKinnon asked about the deductible |ease
expenditures and referred to proprietary information. She
suggested that the Point Thomson project was a |arge asset
to come online, and wondered if there was a way to give an
indication of what portion of the |ease expenditures was
com ng from Poi nt Thonson and "riding on the back of oil."

\V/ g Bur net t shared that he could not provide the
information if he had it (for proprietary reasons), and
speci fied that expenditures were nearly all to one conpany.
He stated that Co-Chair MacKi nnon was correct in that there
was a very large expenditure which was deductible from the
state's tax base, which accrued through the conpanies

Senat e Fi nance Committee 4 04/ 25/15 1:38 P. M



involved at Pt. Thonson and reduced the conpanies'
petrol eum production tax. He surmsed that some of the
expenditures would be going down in the forthcomng years
as the project was devel oped.

Co-Chair MacKinnon discussed the Pt. Thonmson project
tinmeline and thought the general public may not be able to
see the investnent as no revenues had been generated yet.

1: 53: 07 PM

Senator Hoffman referred to the original forecast in the
DOR Revenue Source Book, and the revenues expected for FY
17 based on ANS WC at $110 bbl, conpared to the $86.66 bbl
listed in the presentation. He asked for confirmtion of
the total drop in revenue between the two figures and
wondered if it was $400 million. M. Burnett did not have
the nunmber at hand but estimated the total drop to be
| arger than $400 mllion.

Senat or Hof fnman asked about the ANS WC price of $130 bb
forecast in the DOR Revenue Source Book for FY 21, which

was listed as $112 in the presentation. He asked M.
Burnett to provide the dollar drop for the conparison,
along with the FY 17 conparison, to illustrate the

volatility of oil prices over a short time period.

1: 54: 39 PM
AT EASE

1: 55: 56 PM
RECONVENED

M. Burnett estimated that the difference in the forecasted
prices was a very large nunber close to $1 billion, and
stated that there was a lot of sensitivity to price above
t he $80 bbl range.

Senat or Hof f man t hought the nunber was substantial as well.

Vice-Chair Mcciche comented that if total ANS production
through 2024 stayed at 535 thousand barrels per day
(THSbbl s/ day), which he considered a fairly conservative
nunber, the difference would be that the state would
starting "going to the good" in 2019. Under that scenari o,
the state would expect future revenues to be: mnus $295
mllion in 2018, plus $167 mllion by 2019, plus $725

Senat e Fi nance Committee 5 04/ 25/15 1:38 P. M



mllion by 2020, plus $811 mllion in 2021, plus $795
mllion in 2022, plus $969 in 2023, and plus $1.1 billion
in 2024. He calculated the difference of production staying
flat at 535 THSbbls/day to be $12.5 billion.

M. Burnett could not verify the nunbers calculated by
Vice-Chair Mcciche but thought that despite other factors
in the production tax calculation, the difference was
probably in the neighborhood of $12.5 billion. He asked the
conmittee to bear in mnd that the forecasts were risk-
based and therefore showed production decreasing. He
t hought production was likely to be higher than what was
reflected in the presentation, but not as high as what
Vi ce-Chair M cci che was suggesti ng.

1: 58: 34 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche discussed the difference in the
production tax values in FY 15 and FY 16, and Al aska's
Clear and Equitable Share Act (ACES); and asserted that if
the production tax worked on additional projects and oil
production flattened out, there would be a substantial
difference in income. He qualified that he was thankful for
t he conservative forecast by DOR

Co- Chair MacKinnon referred to SB 21 and thought there had
been a flattening and a slight increase in production which
she believed to be about 1 percent. M. Burnett concurred
that there had been a flattening and slight increase in
producti on.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon thought it appeared as though there was
a greater confidence level in production in the years 2015
t hrough 2017, and |ess confident as the dates noved farther
out. M. Burnett concurred.

Senat or Hof fman hoped that the oil production was flat or
nmoving in a positive direction, and pointed out that the
bottom of the slide reflected the reverse scenario, wth
budget deficits totaling $17 billion plus. He remarked that
the state did not have that in reserves, which necessitated
further reductions to the budget, and he hoped the state
woul d eventually have a $1 billion cushion in the
constitutional budget reserve (CBR).

Co- Chair MacKi nnon thought that that what Senator Hoffnman
stated was fair. Production and prices were variable, and

Senat e Fi nance Committee 6 04/ 25/15 1:38 P. M



the state's expenses were somewhat within its control. She
suggested the state could not control the world oil market,
but could control its spending and incentivize to affect
for greater production. She stated that the senate had nade
a first step in trying to right-size the budget and take a
"bite" out of the budget.

2:01: 27 PM

M. Burnett turned to slide 4. "Reserve Qutlook — Spring
2015 Forecast." He highlighted the $12,780 mllion CBR
bal ance at the end of FY 14. He continued that the state
would have $8,875 mnillion in the CBR and $0 in the
statutory budget reserve (SBR) at the end of FY 15,
assum ng the balance of the deficit was taken out of the
CBR.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon recalled that as of March 2015 the CBR
had approximately $10,130 mllion, and the SBR had
approximately $1,660 mnmllion. She shared that she had
received the nunbers from the Treasury D vision and asked
if her figures were correct.

M. Burnett stated that there was a cash balance in the SBR
was approxinmately $1.6 billion as of the end of April 2015,
and did not think any transfers had been made from the fund
since. He explained that the funds were obligated to be
spent in FY 15, in addition to another $1.2 billion beyond
t hat anount .

Co- Chair MacKi nnon commented that it would be interesting
to see what it would nean to the admnistration if a three-
guarters vote [necessary to access CBR funds] was not
achieved. M. Burnett agreed.

M. Burnett pointed out that wunder the spring forecast
nunbers, as of 2020 the state would have no reserves and a
bit of a deficit beyond that point.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked how the figures were different
from those of the Legislative Finance Division (LFD). She
recalled that previous figures indicated the state would
have exhausted reserves by 2018.

M. Burnett believed that the difference was due to setting

oil prices or state expenditures at a different |evel when
conpleting calculations. He clarified that it would not

Senat e Fi nance Committee 7 04/ 25/15 1:38 P. M



take nuch sensitivity between the two variables to exhaust
the reserves by 2018. He considered the DOR forecast to be
reasonabl e and thought that another forecast that was also
consi dered reasonabl e coul d produce a different result.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon remarked that there was a great deal of
public interest in the deficit and drawing on savings. She
t hought that M. Burnett was projecting the use of reserves
sonewhat nore optimstically than the commttee had heard
earlier in the week.

M . Bur net t stated that both sets of nunbers were
reasonable. He did not think it would take nuch difference
[from the other forecast] in revenues to conme up with a
di m nished reserve in 2018. He did not see a scenario in
which the state would run out of reserves before the end of
2017; however he did not know of scenarios in which the
state did not run out of funds in the early part of 2020.

Co- Chair MacKinnon clarified that the commttee understood
the variables being used in the forecasts, however the
public may not. She pointed out that FY 17 actually started
in the year 2016

M. Burnett concurred, and furthered that FY 18 started in
the year 2017. He stated that in LFD s revenue forecast
nodel , reserve funds would run out in July of 2017, with a
significant deficit that was uncovered in 2019.

Co-Chair MacKinnon clarified for the public that fiscal and
cal endar years used different dates. When discussing FY 17,
the commttee was in reality discussing a beginning date of
July 1, 2016. She explained that FY 17 projected out
further in some people's mnds, when in reality budget
change required action in the current or subsequent year.

M. Burnett agreed and stated he would be careful to use
both types of date reference.

2:07:45 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche elucidated that FY 16 would start in
two nonths and FY 17 would start in 14 nonths.

M. Burnett referred back to slide 4 and pointed out that

from 2021 to 2025 there were deficits reflected with no
reserves to cover them He pointed out that significantly

Senat e Fi nance Committee 8 04/ 25/15 1:38 P. M



| oner ed spending or an additional revenue source was needed
to cover the budget. He commented that prices fluctuated
but the legislature should plan to have sonething in place.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked if M. Burnett had a plan to share
with the commttee. M. Burnett responded in the negative.

2:08: 55 PM

M. Burnett advanced to slide 5: "Spring 2015 Revenue
Forecast Di scussion":

If only the CBRF is tapped each Fiscal Year to
Bal ance the State’'s Budget, current anticipated run-
out date occurs in June of FY 2020

*CBRF Subaccount transfer into the Min account
i ncorporated into Spring projections

*SBRF is anticipated to be fully expended during FY
2015

sAfter SBRF is fully expended, approximately $1.2
billion is needed to balance anticipated General Fund
spendi ng for FY 2015

M. Burnett pointed out that rmuch of 2015 had passed, and
many of the state spending obligations had already
occurr ed.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked M. Burnett to coment on the
Senate's budget proposal to expend the school fund in order
to close the budget gap for FY 15. She clarified the
proposal was due to not being able to get a three-quarters
vote fromthe Mnority necessary to access the CBR

M. Burnett stated that the proposal would create cash flow
differences for FY 16. He did not have a coment on the
spendi ng, but renmarked that the proposal was |egal and do-
abl e.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon was unaware of another alternative to
fund FY 15, and wondered whether M. Burnett was aware of
anot her fund that could serve the sanme purpose. M. Burnett
stated that other funds with available cash were the Power
Cost Equal i zation  (PCE) Fund and  Hi gher Educati on
(governor's schol arshi p) Fund.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 9 04/ 25/15 1:38 P. M



Co-Chair MacKi nnon reiterated that the committee was
| ooking for a three-quarter vote.

2:11: 26 PM

M. Burnett referred to slide 6: "CBRF STATISTICS AS OF
MARCH 31, 2015". He stated that it showed the investnents,
the total asset value, and how nmuch the fund had earned for
the year. He pointed out that the state had earned a bit
nore in the subaccount than the spring forecast had
projected prior to the transfer from the subaccount to the
mai n account. He stated that in the nonth of February there
had been earnings of about $200 million in the subaccount,
with negative earnings for nost of the rest of the year,
for a total of $179 mllion in investment inconme prior to
bei ng noved over to the nmain account.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon expressed that she had concerns with the
current managenent of funds. She had no challenge with the
authority of the comm ssioner of DOR to nove funds how he
deened appropriate to benefit the state, and thought that
everything had been done Ilegally and wunder the right
conditions. She felt that there was |ost opportunity when
the earnings from the subaccount were placed in the main
account, which drew substantially |ess interest.

M. Burnett reported that in 2008 he was the deputy
conmi ssioner of DOR At that tinme there was a transfer of

$4.1 billion to the subaccount from the main account of the
CBR, in Septenber of the sanme year the balance in the
subaccount was $5 billion. He continued that in February of

2009, there was $3.1 billion in the subaccount. He
expl ai ned that when the spending horizon was shorter, the
opportunity to lose noney was a greater risk than the
possible gain of earnings. He referred to the 5-year
horizon in statute as an exanple of using the sane |ogic

He stated that there had been a lot of discussion at the
time, and the decision to have the funds in the subaccount
was correct in the long run, as the noney was not used and
became close to $7 billion over a period of the next a few
years. He stated that Alaska had an unprecedented 6-year
run-up in the equity markets, with a maxi num correction of
20 percent in a day.

M. Burnett continued that there had been a 40-plus percent
correction in a period of a year, and the state could not

Senat e Fi nance Committee 10 04/ 25/ 15 1:38 P. M



recover from that in a 5-year tine horizon. He explained
that the decision to nove the funds was based on protection
from loss rather than seeking earnings. He enphasized that
he did not nmke the choice; rather, he was explaining what
the basis for the choice was. He referred to conmttee
menbers that were in office at the tinme of the earlier
funding scenario, and suggested that sone had Dbeen
"sonmewhat upset” with the comm ssioner of DOR

2:15:50 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon stated that her concern had to do wth
forgoing a $100 million opportunity, and thought that M.
Burnett had been absolutely right (from a conservative
perspective) that the state could stand to |ose the npney
in the case of a negative market. She asserted that the
state would not know for a year if the decision was right
or if there was an opportunity lost. She thought that in
its current location, the noney would be lucky to earn 2
percent interest.

M. Burnett stated that the ten-year expected capital
mar ket averaged sonewhere in the two percent range, which
was not a high nunmber but was unlikely to lose a |arge
amount. He clarified that the funds were in fairly short-
duration investnments.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon wondered if the reasoning behind the
choice (of noving the funds from the subaccount) had to do
with liquidity because the assets could be called upon for
use within the next five years. M. Burnett responded in
the affirmative,.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked about the investnent strategy on
the main account, and wondered if there was any way to
safely increase the return to greater than 2 percent rather
than holding the funds in treasuries. She wondered if there
were long-term equity nutual funds or other options that
m ght draw nore incone for the state.

M. Burnett indicated that the DOR conmm ssioner and the
investnment staff in the Treasury D vision were |ooking at
the asset allocation of the fund, and all other funds. He
expl ained that the fund evaluation was an annual process
after which the funds were reset in July. He stated that he
woul d not be surprised if there were changes nmade to the
asset allocation of the fund, he had participated in

Senat e Fi nance Committee 11 04/ 25/ 15 1:38 P. M



di scussi ons about it, and it was ultimately the
conmmi ssi oner' s deci sion.

2:18:31 PM

Co-Chair MacKinnon asked if the commttee nenbers were
interested in receiving an update from the departnent on
subsequent changes or distinctions in the allocation of the
fund. She indicated that nenbers nodded in agreenent. She
asked M. Burnett to keep the conmittee updated on any
decisions wth regard to the asset allocation. M. Burnett
agr eed.

Senator O son asked about the aforenentioned subaccount
earnings from 2008, and wondered if there were indications
there at the tinme that nmay have suggested it was fine to
| eave the funds rather than nove themto a safer |ocation
He referenced a recent $4 billion transfer, and wondered if
there had been indicators that suggested the state woul d be
|l osing a | arge anount of noney if it was not noved.

M. Burnett reported that the equity markets had one of the
| ongest term run-ups that they had ever had. There had
never been a longer tine period in which there had been no
maj or market correction, and that was considered an
indicator. He recounted that the biggest change was when
the spring forecast came out and there was a |less than
five-year tinme horizon; that was the statutory trigger, and
was what the conm ssioner had recogni zed as a condition for
the funds not to be in the subaccount. He stated that DOR
was in the process of addressing whether the funds should
be in a different asset allocation in the main account than
it currently was.

2:21:04 PM

Senator O son wondered if there should be sonething put
into statute to protect state funds from current market
volatility. M. Burnett did not think any changes to
stat utes wer e necessary, and furthered t hat t he
commi ssioner invested under "the prudent investor rule"
with a look at the life of the asset and when it would be
needed. He furthered that the approach was consistent for
the various funds the state had, and asset allocations were
used to protect the state fromvolatility.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 12 04/ 25/ 15 1:38 P. M



Senat or Bi shop asked if there was a difference in penalties
between draws from the main account and draws from the
subaccount .

M. Burnett responded in the negative, and explained that
t he subaccount was set up around 2000 to gain additional
earni ngs because there were nore funds in the CBR than were
originally predicted to be spent. He furthered that the
subaccount started with a deposit of $400 nmillion, an
anount specifically chosen in order to be a match and a
"natural arbitrage"” between financing that was Dbeing
contenplated in the CBR earnings for capital projects.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked M. Burnett if the state had been
willing to take a little nore risk because it felt the
noney would be held for a longer period of time, thereby
dimnishing the risk; whereas the recent transfer to the
main account was to guard the funds a little closer. M.
Burnett concurred and added that prior to 2015, the state
had not planned to spend the funds for a long period of
time.

2:23:33 PM

M. Burnett turned to slide 7: "APFC Fund Fi nancial History
and Projections As O February 28, 2015." He expl ained that
the slide showed permanent fund projections on earnings,
and the fiscal year end assigned bal ance, which constituted
the earnings reserve account. He furthered that the account
woul d theoretically have funds avail abl e for appropriation.

Co-Chair MacKinnon referred to the slide and wondered if
the fund should be rebalancing to a nore conservative
nature after hitting the longest run of good return. She
asked if there would be conversations with the managers of
the fund accounts regarding switching to nore conservative
ar eas.

M. Burnett believed that the fund managers had rebal anced
to be nore conservative, and specified that the fund's
projected earnings (after fees) was around 6 percent. He
added that there were liquid assets and private equity
within the fund, which had higher returns over the |ong
period. He rem nded the commttee that the principal of the
permanent fund could not be spent, only a portion of the
real i zed earnings.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 13 04/ 25/ 15 1:38 P. M



Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked about the projected rate of return
for the CBR account. She observed that in past years, at
times the CBR had managed a higher rate of return than the
permanent fund, and other tinmes the opposite was true. She
asked M. Burnett to reflect on the previous year, and
conpare DOR s nanagenent and returns to those of the
permanent fund. She wondered how the returns would be
forecast for the future considering the decisions of the
adm ni strati on.

M. Burnett did not have the actual nunmbers with him but
shared that the PCE Fund, the retirenent funds, and the
subaccount of the permanent fund earned a higher rate in FY
14 than the permanent fund. He was unable to recall the
earnings of the current year.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked for M. Burnett's perspective as
well as to provide anticipated amounts for earned incone
for the year. M. Burnett was unable to provide the exact
nunber for the main account of the CBR, but shared that it
was |low. He comented that the information was avail able on
t he departnent website.

2:26:50 PM

Senat or Hof fman comrented that the permanent fund earnings
reserve account continued to grow, and opined that the
| egislature should be examning related policy questions
and where the noney should be spent. He asked about the
current balance of the wearnings reserve account. M.
Burnett responded that the account was projected to be over
$6 billion dollars at the end of FY 15.

Senat or Hof fman observed that it would grow to $12 billion
by 2025. He asked if M. Burnett included the earnings when
he had nentioned "available funds.” M. Burnett responded
in the affirmative;, stating that the wearnings of the
permanent fund were deposited in the general fund as
provided by law, and the |egislature could appropriate them
for any purpose.

2:28: 02 PM

M. Burnett advanced to Slide 8: "GeFONSI Market Value
$5.07 billion at 3/31/2015." He explained that the slide
was an illustration of the market value of the general fund
and other non-segregated investnents (GeFONSI). He pointed

Senat e Fi nance Committee 14 04/ 25/ 15 1:38 P. M



out that the account grew very rapidly up to 2013; and
expl ained that from 2008 to 2013, the total had included
the SBR He recounted that in 2013, the SBR (which
contained about $4.7 billion) had been noved into a
separate fund for investnment purposes, which explained the
significant drop from 2013 to 2014. He continued that the
fund had a variety of nonies from over 100 different funds
and accounts in it, including UG the education forward-
funding account, and noney that the legislature had
appropriated to the Alaska Housing Finance Corporation
(AHFC). He specified that the fund had just over $5
billion, and of that, less than $1 billion was currently
UG-. He discussed short-term fixed-income returns, and
commented that they had been very low for the |ast severa
years.

2: 30: 29 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche asked if there were any results from
the returns trend for FY 15. M. Burnett responded that the
returns were very |ow, and were under one percent.

Vi ce- Chair M cciche asked if the departnent had a
spreadsheet available |listing the various funds. M.
Burnett responded that the departnent had the information

and on the DOR website there was a list of the funds that
received their own interest. He remarked that t he
departnment had nonies that may not belong to the state,
such as student |oan corporation nonies or reserves of
AHFC, which were invested in GeFONSI to garner higher
returns than they m ght gain otherw se.

Co-Chair MacKinnon noted that after M. Burnett's slide
presentation, the conmttee would start a conversation
about the cash deficiency plan, and avail able sources of
funds without the three-quarter vote needed to access the
CBR.

2:32: 27 PM

M. Burnett pointed to Slide 9: "OQher Fund Bal ances As O
March 31, 2015":

* Al aska Hi gher Education Investnent Fund

-$459.9 nillion, total investnment incone $14.7
mllion

Senat e Fi nance Committee 15 04/ 25/ 15 1:38 P. M



e Public School Trust Fund (P& Account)
-$601.2 nillion, total investnent incone $19.2
mllion

* Power Cost Equalization
-$980.1 mllion, total investnent incone $33.5
mllion

M. Burnett noted that the Public School Trust Fund was not
avai lable. It was a constitutionally-dedicated fund whose
income could only be spent on schools, and the investnent
income was portioned into the foundation fornmula every
year. He discussed the PCE Fund, noting that the previous
year it had earned an approximtely 20 percent return, and
the current year it was earni ng sonewhat | ess.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon nentioned that the governor had proposed
di fferent nmanagenent of the PCE Fund, and wondered about
the status of the related |egislation. M. Bur net t
specified that the legislation (SB 34), had passed the
Senate as anended in the Senate Finance Comm ttee, and had
passed the House. He continued that now the fund had a 4
percent investnment policy floor, which nmay or nmay not
change how it was invested, but the departnent would not be
seeking the higher-risk targets.

2:34: 05 PM

M. Burnett clarified that the funds listed on slide 9 were
i nvested outside of the GeFONSI pool. He thought the Public
School Trust Fund had a very interesting investnent policy
which mght be a topic for further discussion for the
comittee.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked if M. Burnett wanted to go into
detail about the public school trust fund investnent
policy. M. Burnett shared that the earnings of the fund
were limted to the realized earnings and did not include
capital gains. He found that investing the earnings in the
nodern world was interesting because the gains on equities
were not included in the inconme, so fixed incone and
di vidend-paying stocks were used to provide incone.
Equities were used to increase the value of the fund, but
capital gains were not spendable. He reiterated that the
policy was sonething the commttee m ght want to exam ne.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 16 04/ 25/ 15 1:38 P. M



Co- Chai r MacKi nnon clarified t hat t he fund was
constitutionally dedicated, but there were statutory ways
for the fund to grow over tinme. She thought M. Burnett was
inferring that the state was not optimzing the growmh and
able to provide it for school education due to statutory
restrictions. M. Burnett believed it was likely the case
and thought it was sonething to | ook at.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon avowed to nmake a note of the policy in
order to bring it to the Senate's attention, possibly
during the wupcomng interim to see if the legislature
could work with the admnistration to better utilize the
revenue stream for public education.

Co-Chair Kelly wanted to be caught up on the conversation

He was wondered if GeFONSI was the account in which the CBR
was managed. M. Burnett relayed that GeFONSI was a pool of
funds including the G-, the forward funding of education
noni es, the funds put aside for the natural gas pipeline,
AHFC funds, the rail belt energy fund noney, and other
simlar types of funds. He stated that it was an investnent
pool and each of the funds owned a portion.

Co-Chair Kelly asked if the fund was fairly liquid. M.
Burnett stated that it was fairly liquid and spendabl e, and
many of the funds were spent on a regular basis. He added
that the CBR and SBR were managed separately, as well as
t he hi gher education fund.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon nentioned funds that were not accessible
by the legislature, such as funds from AHFC or the Al aska
Comm ssion on Postsecondary Education (ACPE). M. Burnett
noted that there was a portion of the fund made of nonies
that had been appropriated for a purpose and had not yet
been spent.

2:38:10 PM

Senator Dunleavy nentioned the AHFC and student | oan
corporation and thought that both had dividends that went
to the state. M. Burnett clarified that both were set up
to spin off a dividend, and assumng that they earned
i ncome, would pay a dividend. He added that the ACPE board
det erm ned whether a dividend was paid every year.

Senator Dunleavy asked if Co-Chair MacKinnon had been
referring to somet hing beyond divi dends.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 17 04/ 25/ 15 1:38 P. M



Co-Chair MacKinnon responded in the affirmative, and
reiterated that the board of directors nade the dividend
policy decision on behalf of the state, and used AHFC as an
exanple of investing dividends based on board's m ssion.
She thought the commttee mght want to examne the
corporation's mssion in the state statutes if they
expected the corporation to pay dividends to the state. She
reiterated that the board was determ ning investnent of the
di vidends, and thought that nost of the dividends were
spent on clientele and other housing opportunities. She
t hought the state had not received a dividend from ACPE for
the past several years; they had reinvested the dividends
in additional | oan prograns or discounts to current
students in repaynent. She considered that the board had
| ooked at the postsecondary debt |oad and repositioned the
di vi dends.

M. Burnett responded that Co-Chair McKi nnon was correct.
He referenced three corporations: the Al aska Industrial
Devel opnent and Export Authority (AlIDEA), AHFC, and ACPE.
As with ACPE and AHFC, AIDEA dividends were at the
di scretion of the board to nake reconmendations as to how
t hey woul d be spent.

2:40:41 PM

Senator Dunleavy asked if it was safe to say that any
di vidends would be a fraction of the nobney the state had
invested for the principal.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon responded that she thought it was fair
to say.

Senat or Dunl eavy asked about an item requested by ACPE and
taken out of the current vyear's budget; funding for an
Al aska Navigator: Statewi de Wrkforce and Educati on-Rel at ed
Statistics (ANSWERS) grant |ongitudinal study. He wondered
if the item could then in turn be funded through the
process of declaration-of-dividend by the board.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon stated that ACPE would be required to
come back to the legislature to request the appropriation
for the direct line of funding. She related that the
comm ssion had made the recomendation, which the
| egi slature had turned dowmn. M. Burnett did not have any

Senat e Fi nance Committee 18 04/ 25/ 15 1:38 P. M



further information, and related that he sat as a nenber of
the board of directors of all three corporations.

Co-Chair MacKinnon related that the board had very
passionately requested the appropriation, and that the
adm nistration had followed up with herself and Co-Chair
Kelly in its request to fund the particular study. It was
her belief that the corporation did not have the authority
to fund the study wi thout the | anguage in the budget.

2:42: 12 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche asked for a quick review of the cash
deficiency contingency plan.

Co-Chair MacKinnon asked M. Burnett to address the
departnent's cash deficiency plan. She reiterated that the
| egislature had not conpleted a three-quarter vote to
access the CBR, and wondered how the departnent would go
through its cash deficiency operation plan and pay for
state governnent.

2:43: 07 PM

Vi ce-Chair M cci che expect ed t hat t he current
adm nistration was working on a conprehensive and fully
execut abl e cash deficiency plan. He wondered if such a plan
was underway considering present conditions.

M. Burnett stated that the plan was reviewed and updated
each year, and the current plan had been executed by the
previous admnistration. He told the comittee that it
coul d expect a new plan that woul d be changed sonewhat, and
it would be a collaborative project with the Departnent of
Law (DOL), the Departnment of Admnistration (DOA), the
O fice of Managenent and Budget (OvB), and DOR

Co- Chair MacKi nnon recognized that it was a collaborative
effort and thought it was a franmework in which to start
policy discussions internally with the admnistration. She
furthered that the Senate Finance Conmittee would like to
know how the departnment would start inplenenting the cash
deficiency plan, because that appeared to the direction in
which the state was going. M. Burnett stated that at the
current tinme the SBR had $1.6 billion, and the GF stil

contai ned cash; and from a cash stand point the State of
Al aska could continue to operate and pay its bills. He

Senat e Fi nance Committee 19 04/ 25/ 15 1:38 P. M



pointed out that at the end of the fiscal year, the state
woul d have a deficit and would be unable to close out the
fiscal year. The state could continue to operate, as |ong
as it believed the deficit would be funded in sone manner.

2:44:54 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked if the state had the reserves in a
variety of accounts to keep the state cash flow current and
keep paying bills. She asserted that it was a policy
decision as to where the state accessed the funds, and
wondered how DOR would pay the state's bills wthout the
three-quarters vote needed to access the CBR She asked
about M. Burnett's nention of "closeout”™ and wondered
whet her he was referring to an accounting closeout, where
the state would be wunable to neet the single audit
requi renents to close out the year.

M. Burnett explained that the state had sufficient cash to
pay its bills; it had an appropriation from the current
year's revenues and the SBR The state would not have
exhausted the cash prior to after the end of the fisca
year. He enphasized that from a cash basis, the state could
continue to operate; qualifying that with the shortage, the
state would not have the authorization to spend beyond
that. Thereby the state would have an unfunded budget,
would not be able to close out the fiscal year, would not
be able to neet the single audit requirements, and would
have gone in to deficit spending. He stated that he was not
the attorney that would be advising the state on the
matter, so he was wunable to tell the conmttee how to
proceed.

2:46: 50 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon shared that the Senate had proposed an
idea to fund the deficit, had passed the notion with a
three-quarter vote, and was not the |egislative body that
was creating the cash deficiency conversation. She relayed
a hypothetical situation that the Senate passed a budget,
enabling the departnment to do the single audit and close
out FY 15 by wutilizing non-forward funding (because of
being unable to get the three-quarters vote from specific
menbers of the other body). She anticipated revenue of $2.2
billion to start FY 16, and wondered how the state would
fund FY 16 without the three-quarter vote.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 20 04/ 25/ 15 1:38 P. M



M. Burnett stated that at the beginning of FY 16, assum ng
t he budget passed and use of the CBR was not authorized,
under the cash deficiency plan the state would have the
ability to inter-fund borrow or borrow externally wthin
the fiscal year. He furthered that iif the |legislature
reasonably believed that there would be some way to close
the gap later on, it could borrow against expected tax
revenues. He believed the state would bring $100 million
per nonth in production tax and royalties. He thought that
dependent upon cash flow, the noney could be borrowed early
in the year and pay the state's bills wuntil it was no
| onger possible. He added that it was not a long-term
sol uti on.

2:49:13 PM

Co-Chair Kelly asked how nmuch of the funds being discussed
were automatically available to the administration. He
wondered if legislative approval (other than the CBR vote)
was required for the departnment to enploy the cash
deficiency plan. M. Burnett responded that wth the
menor andum of understandi ng between DOL, DOA and OWB; the
state could utilize inter-fund borrowi ng w thout additional
| egi slative approval if it was expecting the revenue |ater
in the year

Co-Chair Kelly asked for clarification that inter-fund
borrowi ng was exclusive of the CBR M. Burnett answered in
the affirmative, and relayed that the state had previously
borrowed against the CBR and paid it back. Additionally,
the state could borrow in the market against future
revenues. He sunmmarized that there was potential to nove
cash flow from one end of the year to the earlier part of
the year to pay bills.

Co-Chair Kelly asked how the state could adequately
denonstrate the ability to pay back the funds if there was
not a vote to authorize use of the CBR

M. Burnett stated that there nust be know edge of funds
forthcomng in the future in order to borrow against it. He
qualified that the state could only borrow in the sane
fiscal year as the funds for repaynment were expected.

Co-Chair Kelly wondered if the collateral for borrow ng

also had to be within the same fiscal year. M. Burnett
said not necessarily.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 21 04/ 25/ 15 1:38 P. M



2:51:51 PM

Senat or Hoffrman read al oud section 10, "Interim Borrow ng"
in Article I X of the Constitution of the State of Al aska.

§ 10. Interim Borrow ng

The State and its political subdivisions may borrow
nmoney to neet appropriations for any fiscal year in
anticipation of the collection of the revenues for
that year, but all debt so contracted shall be paid
before the end of the next fiscal year.

Senat or Dunl eavy referred to the scenario of t he
| egislature sending the departnment a spending plan and
funding plan, and wondered if M. Burnett was describing a
scenario in which that the state would be witing an 1OQU on
behal f of the legislature. M. Burnett did not believe that
the departnment had the authorization to borrow funds. He
rem nded the commttee that he was not the attorney tasked
with analyzing the legality. He believed that if the
| egislature were not to have provided any type of funding
for state governnent, there would be a problem noving
forward. He reiterated that it was possible to borrow
agai nst anticipated revenues within the fiscal year to nove
cash flow to the begi nning of the fiscal year.

2:53:41 PM

Senator Dunleavy asked for clarification as to whom M.
Burnett was referring to when he used the word "we." M.
Bur net t clarified t hat he was referring to t he
adm ni strati on.

Senator Dunleavy referred to the word "state”" in the
af orenenti oned section in Article I X of the constitution,
and wondered if it was referring to the legislature, or the
adm nistration. He thought it was an inportant distinction,
and wondered if the admnistration could act on behalf of
the state in the context of the passage.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon suggested that the DOL would be a
resource for interpretation of the constitution rather than
M. Burnett.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon referred back to Section 10 of Article
| X of the constitution.

Senat e Fi nance Committee 22 04/ 25/15 1:38 P. M



2:55: 03 PM

Vice-Chair Mcciche referred to the "Cash Deficiency
Contingency Plan" (copy on file), and the $400 million
m ni mum bal ance which appeared to be a trigger for many of
the procedures listed in the plan. He wanted to better
understand the logic for doubling the required m ninmm
bal ance of the GF. M. Burnett stated that there had been
times in which the state had paid out $200 million in one
day, due to fund transfers and other itenms, so the m ninmm
was then set at a high enough level to ensure there was
sufficient cash to nmeet an obligation. He stated that he
was not involved in the creation of the docunent.

Vi ce-Chair M cciche thought that the nunber could be |ower,
and expected that the departnent would be |ooking at the
m nimum |l evel in the future.

Co- Chair MacKinnon stated that the plan was an internal
docunent where the involved departnments had made their best
policy judgenents, and restated that it was the work of the
past adm nistration. She comented that the |egislature was
interested in what the current adm nistration would do for
cash deficiencies, and wondered when it could expect a new
cash deficiency operation plan.

M. Burnett responded that he was not aware of a date for a
new pl an, but the departnment would be discussing it soon.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asserted that the commttee would |like a
copy of the new plan as soon as possible, and requested
that M. Burnett ask the conmm ssioner for a tineline as to
when the plan mght be developed. She thought that
considering the current fiscal situation, the plan may be a
priority.

M. Burnett thought that regardless of the votes on the
budget, it was likely that the state would be utilizing a
cash deficiency plan as a result of not having a nonthly
cash flow large enough to cover bills in some nonths. The
plan was sonething that would be wutilized under any
ci rcunst ances when the state was spendi ng down reserves.

2:57: 36 PM

Senat e Fi nance Committee 23 04/ 25/ 15 1:38 P. M



Senator Bishop was curious about the aforenentioned
constitutional question of the word "state" in Section 10
in Article I X

Co- Chair MacKi nnon stated that she had been in contact with
DOA Conmi ssi oner Sheldon Fischer to examne sone of the
adm nistration's actions in managi ng governnment. She noted
t hat Conm ssioner Fisher and Comm ssioner Hoffbeck would
both be available the follow ng Tuesday for consultation.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon pointed out that the PCE Fund and the
hi gher education fund were not |isted in the cash
deficiency plan, and wondered if the admnistration
believed they could access the funds to help with deficit
spendi ng when it did not have authori zati on.

M. Burnett stated that the departnent had not given the
idea full consideration yet, and a plan from the previous
year had been looking at a nmuch different |evel of cash
deficiency needs and timng. He stated that the issue of
using the PCE or higher education funds was that they were
both invested long-term and thereby any draws would
provide risk to the funds' long-term viability and result
in greater debt.

Senat or Dunleavy wondered if Legislative Legal Services
could shed sone light on the question of the definition of
"state" in Article IV

Co-Chair MacKinnon thought that if the |legislature was
still in session the following week, the question m ght
bring Departnent of Law to conmmttee to discuss its
constitutional responsibilities in the case of not being
able to obtain the three-quarters vote to access the CBR

Co- Chair MacKi nnon comented that in the earlier cash flow
conversation she had wunderstood that the state nade
different anmounts of paynents at different times of the
year. She discussed a cash-flow nodel and wondered if
education was funded on a six-nmonth cycle or nonthly. She
asked how the noney was distributed to Ilocal schoo

districts. M. Burnett thought that the Departnent of
Education and Early Developnent could provide a better
answer, but stated that the funding for education was not
done all at once. Rather, the funding was done over tineg,
with a larger draw at the beginning of the year and smaller
draws throughout the remaining tinme. He added that | ocal

Senat e Fi nance Committee 24 04/ 25/ 15 1:38 P. M



governments were funded simlarly; except for shared taxes,
whi ch were paid after they were coll ected.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon pointed out that nobst school districts
did not have taxing authority, and thought that districts
understood the fiscal situation. She asked that if the
|arger draw in the beginning of the year that neant that
the FY 15 draw would help the districts go past July 1st
and start the next fiscal year, or would there be another
draw later in the sunmer.

M. Burnett stated that for the past several years the
draws had conme from the education forward-funding account,
so it was not a G draw. He |ooked at the funding
differently than the cash plan for the G-, and so long as
education was forward-funded, it was not included in the
cash deficiency nodel. He stated that certainly it was
necessary to fund early in the year, and also through the
year. He had |ooked at the historic balances through the
year but did not recall exact nunbers.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon asked if M. Burnett could provide the
conmittee with information on the second draw from the
education fund. She discussed the timng of the school year
and the fiscal vyear, and recognized that there were
operati ng expenses before the beginning of the school year.
She wondered when the next |arge paynent would go to schoo

districts in Alaska. M. Burnett agreed to provide the
i nformati on.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon expressed appreciation for M. Burnett
testifying on a Saturday. She related that the comittee
was trying to understand what the adm nistration was facing
in regards to the budget. She was concerned about what the
adm nistration mght do if the three-quarters vote was
hanmpered by a small group of people. She did not support a
draw from the PCE account, and considered that it would be
detrinmental to the account. She thought that selling
conservatively-invested assets would cause an even greater
need for cash in the future. She relayed that there were
several commttee nenbers who concurred with the sentinent.

M. Burnett nmentioned Alaska's credit rating, and wondered
if the conmttee wanted to discuss it.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon expressed t hat t he current
adm nistration did a good job and went to the markets to

Senat e Fi nance Committee 25 04/ 25/ 15 1:38 P. M



nmake a case for the state as to why it should maintain a
strong credit rating. She nentioned the sizable reserves
and the contentious relations over how they would be
accessed. She asserted that the state was currently cash
rich, and acknow edged that accessibility and the projected
use of the savings would be a cause for pause to credit
agenci es. She asked M. Burnett to do a high-level overview
of key factors included in the state's credit rating, so
the coomttee could understand what was being exam ned on a
nati onal | evel

3:06:45 PM

M. Burnett discussed key rating considerations of the
state including its large undedicated and wunrestricted
reserves, and possession of a volatile single-resource
incone stream He described that the state had conservative
financial planning over the years, which was positive and
attributable to the legislative body. He discussed the CBR
and the SBR, and past stability of the budget. He rem nded
the commttee that Al aska's econony was very dependent upon
natural resources, and a nmanageable liability position with
little debt relative to incone. He discussed the state debt
| evel renmaining stable over time and specified that it was
currently about 8 per cent (1 ncluding school debt
rei mbursenent). He thought that <credit agencies were
sensitive to a long-term dowward trend with no plan to
access reserves in a systematic way. He thought nost of the
rating anal ysts he had spoken with over preceding years did
not believe the |legislature would ever spend permanent fund
earnings on government. Rating agencies would consider
whet her the state would access other sources of revenues;
they were used to other states enploying broad-based taxes.
The agencies were very conservative and viewed Al aska as
bei ng different than other states.

M. Burnett remarked that the credit agencies would be
| ooking at how the state handled the «current fiscal
situation. He discussed reducing expenses over tine and
having a systematic plan for using the reserves so they did
not run out.

3:10: 01 PM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon remarked that the state had a plan with
engaging a natural gas pipeline. She said the state had
laid the framework, and though it mght not be apparent to

Senat e Fi nance Committee 26 04/ 25/ 15 1:38 P. M



the general public, policy nakers had been advancing a
pl an.

M. Burnett stated that the rating agencies were well aware
of the natural gas pipeline plan, and they were rating
twenty-year debt. The agencies were expecting additional
revenue sources in the future, which would include a gas
pi peline within that period.

Co- Chair MacKinnon commented that DOR s projected revenue
streans reflected the gas pipeline, as far as expending to
neet the goal.

Senator Dunleavy felt as if the Senate was on its own,
separate from the House of Representatives in trying to
navi gate the fiscal situation. He stated that he was very
interested in hearing from the admnistration about its
plan to get through the subsequent two to three years. He
remarked that the state was the size of a subcontinent,
with 700,000 people, and was not the sane as a city or
county down sout h.

Vice-Chair Mcciche thought that the state should have a
fiscal plan independent of the natural gas pipeline, and
suggested that the success of the project would benefit how
the state's finances were viewed in the future. He thought
the state should nanage spending and revenue independent
fromthe project.

3:13: 01 PM

Senator Dunleavy indicated that there were plans being put
forward, and nentioned a plan put forth by retired UAA
econom st Dr. Scott CGoldsmth that he considered of nerit.
He restated his interest in hearing a plan from the
adm ni stration. He agreed with Vice-Chair M cciche on using
caution when considering a future gas pipeline as a large
revenue conponent of a fiscal plan.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon di scussed t he schedul e.
#

ADJ OQURNIVENT
3:14: 52 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 3:14 p.m

Senat e Fi nance Committee 27 04/ 25/15 1:38 P. M



